PARTNERSHIP AND REGENERATION SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the hybid meeting held on 17 April 2024

PRESENT: Councillor Dylan Rees (Chair)

Councillors Non Dafydd, Jeff Evans, Pip O'Neill, Derek Owen, Margaret Murley Roberts, Ken Taylor and Sonia Williams

Portfolio Members

Councillor Gary Pritchard – Deputy Leader & Portfolio Member for Children, Youth & Housing Services; Councillor Robin Williams – Deputy Leader & Portfolio Member for Finance; Councillor Carwyn Jones – Portfolio Member for Corporate & Customer Experience; Councillor Dafydd Roberts – Portfolio Member for Education & Welsh Language.

- IN ATTENDANCE: Chief Executive, Head of Democratic Services, Scrutiny Manager (AGD), Scrutiny Officer (EA), Committee Officer (MEH), Webcasting Committee Services Officer (FT).
- **APOLOGIES:** Councillors John Ifan Jones, Gwilym O Jones, Euryn Morris.

Mrs Wenda Owen (The Church in Wales), Mrs Gillian Thompson (Parent Governor - Primary Schools Sector) and Mr John Tierney (The Roman Catholic Church)

Councillor Llinos Medi – Leader of the Council & Portfolio Member for Economic Development; Councillor Neville Evans – Portfolio Member for Leisure, Tourism & Maritime. Councillor Dafydd R Thomas – Portfolio Member for Highways, Property & Waste; Councillor Nicola Roberts – Portfolio Member for Planning, Public Protection & Climate Change.

ALSO PRESENT: Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board Programme Manager (ST) (for item 4 only)

In the absence of the Vice-Chair, Councillor Margaret M Roberts was elected a Vice-Chair for this meeting only.

1 APOLOGIES

As noted above.

2 DECLARATION OF INTEREST

None received.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the previous meeting held on 13 March, 2024 were confirmed as correct.

4 GWYNEDD AND ANGLESEY PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD

The report of the Chief Executive outlining the review of the delivery arrangements of the Public Services Board and monitoring the progress of the Board in the implementation of the 2023-2028 Well-being Plan was presented for the Committee's consideration and scrutiny.

The Deputy Leader & Portfolio Member for Children, Youth & Housing Services reported that the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 places a duty on public bodies to improve the social, economic, environmental, and cultural well-being of Wales. The Act also established the Public Services Boards across Wales with members consisting of public bodies and the third sector. The Public Services Board works collaboratively as partner organisations to ensure that strategic plans are aligned with, and support achievement of local well-being objectives.

The Chief Executive reported that the culture of the Public Services Board has strengthen over the last 12 months, with a new Chair, Mr Aled Jones-Griffith being appointed. He also wished to congratulate Mr Jones-Griffith on his appointment as the new Chief Executive of Grŵp Llandrillo Menai. He said that there is pressure on residents within the local communities due to the cost-of-living crisis, resulting in poverty and well-being. The main principles of the Council are collaborating with partner organisations and the third sector especially due to budget restraints and cuts to front line services.

The Gwynedd and Anglesey Public Services Board Programme Manager reported that the Delivery Plan of the Public Services Board will be subject to ongoing review. Due to the previous success and ongoing focus of the Welsh Language Sub-Group, the Board agreed that it should continue in its current form. Regional work has recently been undertaken as regards to recruiting within the public sector when the Welsh language is essential for different posts. She further said that following an independent academic assessment of the effectiveness of the other Sub-Groups, it was decided to proceed with the recommendation to set up more operational focussed Task and Finish Groups for each action of work by the Board.

In considering the report the Committee raised the following issues:-

- Reference was made as the Well-being Plan is underway, to what extent do the current arrangements support the delivery and what opportunities, challenges and risks face the Public Services Board going forward. In response, the Chief Executive said that the Board has developed to align with the Well-being Plan and has matured with partner organisations sharing good practices and information. He referred to the achievement of the Welsh Language Sub-Group which has been able to share good practices within the other partner organisations to improve the use of the Welsh language within their organisations. He said that the risk faced by the Board is similar to the local authorities as there is a lack of resources to meet the increase demand for support by local residents and communities. The structures put in place and the method of working has strengthened the Boards ability to add value.
- Questions were raised as to what added value has been highlighted by working in partnership within the Public Services Board and whether all partners align to the partnership working within the Board. The Programme Manager gave examples of the work of the Board and said that one of the aims is to align the effects of poverty with the work already taking place within the local authorities and thereafter, ensuring that people are receiving the benefits they are entitled. She referred to another example that the Board has adopted a methodology as regards to Health Wales Plan. The Chief Executive gave an example that work has been undertaken in relation to the Woodland in Newborough and the impacts of visitor numbers on the local community. Reference was also made that the issues raised by this Committee at a previous meeting as regards to statutory consultees were not responding to planning applications during the consultation process. The Programme Manager said that the Board has been able to influence the partner organisations to respond to planning applications as statutory consultees. The Chief Executive said that whilst the Board has influenced the partner organisations to respond to planning applications it is also beneficial that the Board partner organisations can also potentially support the local authorities as regards to the future amendments needed to the national planning policies.
- The Chief Executive in response to the question as regards as to whether all partner organisations align to the partnership working within the Board, he said that he considered that the commitment of all the representation of the partner organisations has strengthened and was consistent. He referred to the Healthy Living/Health Weight programme and noted that high levels of obesity in young people have been identified on Anglesey. Working in partnership within the Board to tackle obesity is important as a local authority is unable to tackle the problem on its own. Questions were raised as to where the data was received to identify obesity in young people on the Island. The Programme Manager responded that data has been shared by Public Health Wales and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board with the Public Services Board. Detailed information has been also received as to specific areas within local communities where obesity has been identified on Anglesey. The Chief Executive said that further contact would be made with Public Health Wales to afford the data of the specific areas where obesity has been identified and will be shared with the Leader and the relevant Portfolio Members together with other Elected Members.
- Reference was made that the Council and CAB Ynys Môn have received £250k from the UK Government through the UK Shared Prosperity Fund to help to

tackle the cost-of-living crisis. Questions were raised as to how the Council will avoid duplication of the work already undertaken to address poverty and how does the Public Services Board poverty objective complement the work stream. The Programme Manager responded that the opportunity to add value as regards to the cost-of-living crises is greater due to having the partner organisations on the Board and within the Task and Finish Group addressing poverty and therefore avoiding duplication of the work undertaken.

 Questions were raised as to whether the cost-of-living crisis will influence the ability of the Board to achieve its aims as regards to poverty. The Programme Manager responded that the Board does not have any financial resources, but it is hoped that in sharing good practices and collaboration will support the challenges that communities are facing due to the cost-of-living crisis. The Chief Executive said that the wording of the Well-being strategic aim is important as the Board is working with the partner organisations in addressing the effects on communities due to poverty and the cost-of-living crisis. The Deputy Leader and Portfolio Member for Children, Youth and Housing Services expressed that the Council does not have the ability to address poverty on its own but working in partnership with the different organisations within the Board give the ability to share good practices and to target areas that are facing poverty.

It was RESOLVED to note the progress made by the Public Services Board in implementing the 2023-2028 Well-being Plan.

ACTION : As noted above.

5 FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 2024/2025

The report of the Scrutiny Manager setting out the Partnership and Regeneration Scrutiny Committee's indicative Forward Work Programme 2024/2025 was presented for consideration.

It was RESOLVED to agree the current version of the forward work programme for 2024/2025.

COUNCILLOR DYLAN REES CHAIR